

# **User Guide**

# Contents

Overview	3
Measure iOS Application	
Measure Receiver	4
Measure Online Environment	5
Your Quick-Start Guide	6
Icon Library	7
Settings	8
Using LoopLink	9
Test Signals	9
Field Strength / Current Control	
Frequency Response / MLC Control	10
What and how to measure	11
Service Points, Counters and Localised Small Volume Systems	11
Area Coverage Systems	
How to Measure	13
Meter Mode	14
Meter Mode - Field Strength	15
Meter Mode - Frequency Response	
Meter Mode - Background Noise	17
Getting Started: Setting up a project in the A	<b>\pp</b> 18
Test Mode	19
Test Mode - Commissioning Test	20
Test Mode - Commissioning Test results in the Loopworks portal	
Test Mode - Commissioning Test Reporting in the Loopworks porta	23 24
Test Mode - Quick Check Test Results in the Loopworks portal	
Test Mode - Freestyle Test	
Test Mode - Site Assessment Test Devide in the Leave - L. D	
Test Mode - Site Assessment Test Results in the Loopworks Portal Test Mode: Editing a Project or System in the Portal	29 20
Vordicts	

Verdicts	
Trouble Shooting	
Important Safety Information	34



The Loopworks Measure tools consist of three parts; an iOS App, an R1 Receiver and the online portal. The App can be used in a simple **Meter mode** to replicate the functionality of a traditional field strength meter but provides significantly increased functionality when signed in to a free Loopworks account.

A Loopworks account enables enhanced test meters, direct driver control via LoopLink, recording audio samples and **Test mode**, which contains step-by-step wizards to guide you through different procedures with immediate system verdict feedback.

All test data is synchronised with the Loopworks<sup>™</sup> online portal when the device connects to a wireless network, which allows analysis of results and creation of reports and certificates.

Your Loopworks account also allows access to other areas of the online portal, including the hearing loop design tool and on demand, accredited training courses.

# Loopworks Measure iOS Application





To use the Loopworks App you will also need an R1 Receiver, which can be purchased from the Ampetronic website or your local distributor. The Receiver has a 3.5mm jack that plugs into the headphone socket on your iOS device. On newer devices a Lightning to 3.5mm headphone jack adapter will be required, the official Apple adapter is recommended.

WARNING: For important information about avoiding hearing loss, see Important safety information at the back of this User Guide.



3.5mm (1/8 inch) Jack plugs into top or bottom headphone socket on iOS device Headphones with standard 3.5mm (1/8 inch) jack can be plugged into the Receiver



**NOTE:** When taking a meter reading in any mode it is essential that the device is held vertically at the intended listening height to simulate the position of the telecoil in a hearing aid. Deviation of over 30° from vertical will result in an alignment warning symbol being displayed and data capture function being deactivated.

# Loopworks<sup>®</sup> Measure Online Environment

When you are signed into your Loopworks account, the App can synchronise your data with the Loopworks online portal, making it possible for you, or a colleague, to analyse the results online and create test and certification reports.

You can also set up systems and test points prior to going to site, playback recorded audio and get live support and analysis from our Ampetronic loop experts, by phone or live chat, when using the online Loopworks environment.



# Your Quick-Start Guide

### 1. Purchase Receiver

You will need an R1 Receiver to perform any measurements in the app. The receiver contains a telecoil and enables your iOS device to accurately measure magnetic fields. You can purchase an R1 Receiver from the Ampetronic website or through your local distributor.

https://www.ampetronic.com/products/loopworks-measure-receiver-field-strength-meter-r1/

## **2. Sign up for Loopworks**<sup>™</sup>

Create a free account to access the Loopworks online portal, and enable increased functionality on the App. This stage is optional, and you can use the App in simple meter mode; however, you will need an account to access the full range of functions and to be able to save data or record audio.

Create an account at loopworks.ampetronic.com or from within the app.

### 3. Download the FREE App

Visit the App Store on your iOS device and search for 'Loopworks Measure' to download the app for free. Note we recommend allowing automatic updates to ensure you get the latest features and improvements as soon as they are released.

### 4. Connect the Receiver . . .

Start your new App and plug the Receiver into the headphone socket of your iOS device to activate it.

Follow the on-screen instructions to allow access to the microphone and enter the label number (digits only) printed on the side of the Receiver.



### 5. Then calibrate the Receiver

Follow the on-screen instructions to calibrate the receiver against your iOS device's settings. This is an important function to allow accurate meter readings to be taken.

### 6. Sign in to Loopworks

After successful calibration you will be prompted to sign in when first opening the app, if you have not already created an account you can register within the app at this stage. If you choose not to sign in now, you can sign in via the settings menu at any point. During sign in any existing data will be synchronised to the app, you can check the synchronisation status and manually synchronise at any point from the projects menu.

Note: Loopworks Measure only allows a user to be signed in to one device at a time. Multiple users should each create their own free Loopworks account. If using different devices, you must make sure your data is fully synchronised then logout of the first device before signing in to the second.









# Icon Library

lcon	Meaning	Definition in Measure App
Gener	al Menu Items	
Field	Field Strength Meter	Measure un-weighted magnetic field strength in dBL (Ref: 0dBL = 400mA/m)
Freq	Frequency Response Meter	Measure un-weighted frequency response of the magnetic field in dBL (Ref: 1 kHz)
Noise	Background Noise Meter	Measure A-weighted magnetic field strength of unwanted signals in dBL (Ref: 0dBL = 400mA/m)
	Record	Record a live audio sample of the signal for record or review in the Loopworks web portal. <b>NB</b> this option is only possible when performing a test session.
F	Save	Press to save a meter reading by assigning it to an individual test point.
$\bigcirc$	Reset	Press to erase the history of the peak level indicator.
	Results	Select to show a table of captured data for the selected project/system.
	Start Test	Use the Loopworks Measure App to access step-by-step guides/wizards for system commissioning tests, quick check tests, freestyle tests and site assessments.
	Stop Test	Stop or interrupt a certification test or site assessment; you can restart later.
- <b> </b>	Test Points	Set-up and select a test point at a specific room location and height to take meter readings at. <b>NB this option is required to save or record audio.</b>
ŝ	Settings	Select to sign in to your Loopworks account, sync data, select/change projects and alter audio/ device settings.
?	Contextual Help	Toggles the help on and off. Menu items become inactive in the mode instead displaying a descriptive help balloon.
Test T	ypes	
<u>dankan t</u> Weberte	Background Noise	Icon used to denote readings of unwanted electro-magnetic background noise in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and on certification reports
ull	Field Strength	Icon used to denote readings of magnetic field strength in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and certification reports.
$\approx$	Frequency Response	Icon used to denote readings of frequency response in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and certification reports.
5	Live Field Strength	Icon used to denote readings of live signal field strength in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and certification reports.
<u>.1.48.1</u>	System Noise	Icon used to denote readings of unwanted noise created by the installed loop system in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and certification reports.
ЭĮ	Overspill	Icon used to denote readings of unwanted magnetic field strength outside the required area in the Loopworks <sup>™</sup> App, online tools and certification reports.
2	Live Signal Listening Test	Icon used to denote a test where headphones have been used to physically listen to a live signal such as a voice or music using the Loopworks Measure app to replicate a hearing aid.
<b>T</b>	Venue Accessibility	Icon used to denote whether staff have been trained to use the system and that a Hearing Loop sign is visible in the covered area and at each entry point.
Online	Portal Menu	
٩	Projects	Review, edit or create a hearing Loop project in which to take Measurements or specify/design.
X	Design	Review, edit or create a hearing Loop system specification and/or design.
<i>T</i> .	Measurements	Review measurement values for hearing loop systems surveyed using the Loopworks Measure App, or manually enter values for a system surveyed using a traditional Field Strength Meter.

# ☼ Settings

Project: Ampetronic Office       System: Meeting Room 3
Settings
Арр
Calibrate
Audio Capture
Enforce Vertical Alignment
Audio Listening
LoopLink
Loopworks
Sign Out
Go to my Projects
Go to Current Project
About
DONE
Start Test Test Points Results Settings

#### Settings Screen Sign in/out, edit projects, check versions and alter your device preferences.

<b>&lt;</b> s	<b>奈</b> ettings						
Lo	opwork	s Acces	5				
E	mail:	user	@ampeti	ronic.c	om		
P	asswor	d: ••••	•••••		•		
			Sign	In			
	PI	ease ensur and signed devices b	e you hav out of ar efore sig	ve sync ny othei ning in	hronis r active here.	ed e	
Don't have an account? Register							
q	w	e r	t	γL		i o	р
i	s	d f	g	h	j	k	Ι
¢	z	xc	v	b	n	m	$\overline{\langle}$
	2123		space	9		ret	urn
0:							

#### Sign in

Sign into your Loopworks account via the App.



Select project and system, view recent or add new records.

<b>奈</b> BACK			
Recording Length:			
	10 secon	ıds	
			Settings

Audio Settings Increase/decrease audio capture times.



#### **Calibrate Receiver** Review previous calibration results, manually recalibrate at regular intervals or if receiver changed.



### About Measure App

Check App details and ensure that you have the most up to date version available.

# Using LoopLink

Ŷ	LoopLink Done
LoopLink	0
Se	lect Driver
Project	Ampetronic Office
System	Meeting Room 3
Driver IP	192.168.0.56
Driver Name	C7-2N
Driver Model	C7-2N
Link Status	Connected
LoopLink Optic	ons
Enable LoopLink	k 🔵
Enable prompts	
Go to Driver	Þ
	- 🗐 🔅
atart rest lest Pol	into neosino Settingo

 Real (Real (Reat (Reat (Real (Reat (Reat (Reat (Reat (Reat (Reat (Reat (Reat (R

LoopLink enables direct connection from the Loopworks Measure App to any Ampetronic C, D or T Series network enabled driver, for automation of test signals and control of current and frequency response correction. This allows you to speed up testing by removing the need to return to the amplifier or switch between the app and web browser to update settings. With meters and controls in one place you can make precise level adjustments and get instant feedback on any changes made.

Note: You must be signed in to your Loopworks account to access the LoopLink features.

Access LoopLink settings either via the main settings menu or pressing the LoopLink icon on one of the meter views. From here you can select your driver by entering the IP address, this can normally be obtained from the front panel of the amplifier. Ensure your iOS device is connected to the same network as the amplifier before trying to connect. You will need to provide the username and password for the amplifier before you're able to connect, see the amplifier handbook for default credentials, if using a C-Series driver you must sign in as an audio or super administrator to use LoopLink.

Once connected you can manually disconnect if required or choose to completely forget the IP address and credentials of the amplifier.

The Link Status will update to reflect if connection has been lost to the amplifier, and this is also reflected by the colour of the LoopLink icon on the meter views (grey – not configured, green – connected, red – disconnected).

### **Test Signals**

While LoopLink is connected the test signals built into the amplifier will be automatically controlled by the app. This means as soon as you change meter view the default test signal for that measurement will be activated on the amplifier and readings can be taken straight away. Manually changing the Signal selected in the app will also update the amplifier. This includes 'System Off' which completely disables the output section of the amplifier, allowing background noise readings to be carried out without physically turning off the power. If at any point you wish to turn off the test signals while still connected you can select the 'Signal Off' option. When disconnecting from an amplifier or closing the app, it will automatically turn off the test signals to ensure these are not left running when you have finished testing the system.

Selecting a different test signal directly on the amplifier will update the selection in the app, as long as it is a suitable signal for the current measurement mode. If the test signal selected is not suitable a pop-up warning will be displayed in Loopworks Measure.

LoopLink also provides direct access to key settings on the connected amplifier, which allow you to view the performance on the live meters, make accurate adjustments and see immediate feedback from the changes made in one place. These settings are available for field strength and frequency response views when in meter mode, or within commissioning, freestyle or site assessment test sessions. For more information on specific settings and options refer to the handbook for the amplifier.

### Field Strength / Current Control



On a field strength view you can type in a precise numerical value for the output current, normalise the system or tap the sliders icon to open more options.

The sliders icon opens a window with one or two sliders depending on the amplifier connected. Single channel amplifiers will show a current slider, with a numerical field for entering precise values. Dual channel amplifiers will also show an offset control which allows a different output level to be set for each loop circuit or completely disable an output, depending which amplifier you are connected to.

Normalise takes the peak hold reading from the meter and adjusts the output current of the amplifier to achieve 0 dB field strength at that test position, if possible. Normalise may not work correctly if the existing field strength is very low, a minimum current of -20dB is recommended before using this feature.



Note that normalise will affect the field strength at all test points across the room and so invalidate previously saved readings. It is recommended to use this in one position and then check the rest of the test points to confirm they fall within  $\pm$  3 dB.

### Frequency Response / MLC Control



On frequency response views a dropdown allows choice of preset MLC slopes which allow you to correct for high frequency losses. If the response cannot be corrected with a preset slope then 'Custom' can be selected. Once selected, pressing the custom MLC icon shows a set of three dropdowns, to set the centre knee frequency, low frequency slope and high frequency slope independently.

LoopLink also allows you to associate amplifier connections with projects and systems in the app. This stores the IP address and credentials of the amplifier against the specific system, meaning the connection is restored whenever changing back to that system in the future. The connection is stored locally within the app and not synchronised to the online portal.



Whenever you have a system selected and connect to a driver in LoopLink settings, this connection will be saved against the current system.

Enabling prompts in the LoopLink settings makes it easier to use this feature. If you have an active LoopLink connection, when selecting a new system that has not previously had an amplifier saved to it, you will be asked if you wish to save the current amplifier details to that system. If LoopLink is not connected then you will be asked if you wish to configure a new connection to store against that system. To remove amplifier details that have been stored against a system, simply go to LoopLink settings and choose 'Forget' to wipe the IP address and credentials.

# What and how to measure

The specification of a hearing loop system can seem complex, requiring detailed knowledge of all the necessary elements of the system, the loop design options available and their limitations, amplifier selection plus adherence to Standards. When starting the specification process, it is essential that the audio being transmitted, and any unwanted noise, are captured at the correct height and in multiple areas throughout the area to be covered. The listening plane is usually assumed to be at a height of 1.2m for a seated person or 1.7m standing.



## Service Points, Counters and Localised Small Volume Systems

Induction loops can also be used for one-to-one communications, such as at service counters, help points and intercoms. The height of the listening plane needs to be appropriate to the setting, and localised overspill will also need to be considered in order to maintain a consistent signal and confidentiality. Test at standing and seated heights to ensure the hearing aid receives a strong signal.





Measure at 45° off axis from the counter in addition to directly in front, to ensure some lateral movement is allowed for.

# Area Coverage Systems

To ensure even and consistent loop coverage, define test points around the room or area to be looped, at the correct height for the room's main usage and spaced out evenly across the listening area.



### **Adding Test Points**

Project: Amp System: Mee	petronic Office eting Room 1		
	Test point		
Test point	Description	X / Y(m)	Height (m)
Minimum of 4 t	est points require	ed to generate	verdict
			_
+ ADD NEW		DC	NE

At least 4 test points are needed to create a system verdict, any overspill readings should be added as separate test points in addition to these.

Test points can be added individually, allowing a unique name, measurement height, X/Y co-ordinates and description for each position. Press 'Done' to add just that one test point, or to immediately add another press 'Save & Add More'.



Cancel Ad	dd Test Point	Done
Single Batch	SAVE & A	DD MORE
Prefix	А	
Height (m)	1.2	
Quantity	4	
Start #	1	
Preview		
A1		
A2		
A3		
A4		

You can also add batches of test points, this is useful when testing larger areas or when test point names can be referenced to a drawing. Select Batch mode at the top, you will then get a set of different fields. Prefix allows you to add a common name for each test point which will then have a number added. Height is fixed across all batch added test points, and you cannot specify X/Y co-ordinates. Choose a quantity of points up to 25 to create, if you are adding a second batch you can offset the start number. The list below will show the names of each test point that is going to be created based on your settings. As with the single option press 'Done' to finish or 'Save & Add More' if you need to continue adding test points.

# How to Measure

The Loopworks Measure Receiver contains an internal Telecoil (T-Coil), mounted in an axis that replicates the vertical position in a standard hearing aid, when attached to a mobile device. The Receiver must be in the vertical position when you are taking measurements. Deviation of over 30° from vertical will result in an alignment warning symbol being displayed and the data capture function being deactivated.

**NB**. This feature can be deactivated using the 'Device Alignment' function in the settings menu if using an adapter for the receiver.



# Meter Mode

The Measure App will function in simple **Meter mode** when you are not signed into the Loopworks portal. In **Meter mode**, your iOS device becomes the most accurate, dedicated field strength meter (FSM) currently available. To take advantage of the full range of online tools and functions, create an account at https://loopworks.ampetronic.com. To sign-in, press the Settings icon and the account will synchronise.



Ampetronic Loopworks Measure User Guide

# Meter Mode - Field Strength

A broad band measurement to measure field strength delivered by the system. Select to measure un-weighted magnetic field strength.

- Broad band measurement 50Hz to 8kHz
- True RMS detection referenced to 400 mA/m
- Scale -40 to +10dBL or -15 to +6 dBL by pressing zoom
- Suitable for use with sine wave, pink noise, combination and live signals. Can also reference speech.



## Signed out

# Meter Mode - Frequency Response

Third octave filters for measuring performance across the required frequency spectrum. Select to measure un-weighted frequency response of the magnetic field.

- Third octave bands at 100Hz, 1kHz and 5kHz
- True RMS detection
- Scale resolution to 1dB, measurements to 0.1dB
- For use with pink and combination signals.



## Signed out

# Meter Mode - Background Noise

To determine the level of the background magnetic field present in the intended location for the loop system. Also used to measure low-level signals to assess overspill outside a loop system. Select to measure A-weighted magnetic field strength of unwanted signals.

- A-Weighted filter
- True RMS detection. 0dB referenced to 400mA/m
- Scale -60 to -0dBL or -45 to -15dBL
- Audio output can be captured for analysis in signed-in, certify mode or listened to live via the headphone jack in signed-out, Meter mode
- For use with system on or off, sine waves and combination signals.



## Signed out

# Getting Started: Setting up a project in the App

### 1. Define a Project

In order to start a new session, you will first need to define your project. To do this, first press the white projects bar at the top of the app. Open the Project selection control and press New. Fill in the project name and other details then press Done. Now you can select the newly created project from the list.

## 2. Define a System

Once you have defined your project, you will also need to define your system. To do this, open the System selection control and press New. Give the system a name and choose whether you are testing an area coverage loop or small volume service point. Press Done then select the newly created session from the list.

# **3.** Synchronise with Loopworks<sup>TM</sup>

If your device is online, Loopworks will automatically synchronise new records and data with the online portal as they are created. The projects page will tell you if there is any unsynchronised data and let you manually synchronise at any time. This is useful to do when first coming back online if tests have been carried out without an internet connection.

## 4. Define Test Points

Once you have synchronised your defined project and system with Loopworks, it's time to define your test points. Return to main meter screen and select test points. See p13 of this user guide for more detail about defining test points.

## 5. Start your Test Session

You're now ready to start your session, which you'll be prompted to name. You can choose from: Commissioning, Quick Check, Freestyle or Site Assessment tests or open an existing session. All these steps are described in more detail in pages 15-25 of this user guide.







Page 18



# Test Mode

Once signed in to your Loopworks account, you can synchronise your data with the Loopworks online portal by using the Project menu, making it possible for you, or a colleague, to record and analyse results. In Test mode, you will also have access to step-through guides that walk users through the processes of collecting site data, performing system checks, commissioning systems to Standard and creating test and certification reports.

Once signed in, we advise users to <u>stay signed in</u> to access all the step-through guides, even without internet access. You should synchronise your data with the portal when you reconnect. **See previous page for more guidance on syncing in the Project menu**.

Start freestyle test: Select to evaluate the	Project: Ampetronic Office System: Meeting Room 1	▶?	
functional performance	Sessions		Start new
60118-4	Start new session		commissioning test:
	Start Commissioning Test	>	complete performance
	Start Quick Check Test	> <	of a system against IEC 60118-4 for certification
Start site assessment	► Start Freestyle Test	>	
test:	Start Site Assessment Test	>	Start quick check test: Select to perform a basic
using a simple test loop	Open an Existing Session		against IEC 60118-4
			Open and reveiw an
			existing session
	CA	NCEL	

# Test Mode - Commissioning Test

Select Start a New Commissioning Test to evaluate the complete performance of a system against IEC 60118-4 for certification. Users can also create test and certification reports, including the full commissioning test report, in the online tools.

To carry out a commissioning test you will need access to and control of the amplifier in order to play the specified test signals and make adjustments to settings.

See <u>https://www.youtube.com/user/AmpetronicLoops</u> for a full demonstration of commissioning with LW Measure.

**NOTE:** Make sure you follow the guidance regarding loop height and setting up test points on **pages 12 & 13.** You will be required to take measurement at each defined test point when measure except for overspill.

# Steps 1-3



#### **Background Noise** Test with system OFF. Identify sources of magnetic noise within the area. At least 4 test results are required.



**Field Strength** Test level with a COMBI signal in at least one position. Adjust output current on amplifier. At least 4 test results are required.



#### Frequency Response Test with PINK noise in at least one position. Adjust MLC control on amplifier. At least 4 test results are required.



System: Meeting Room 1 Session: Commissioning - 01/0	)7	▶?
Commissionin Step 4 of 8	g Test	
Are live signals delivered without triggering clip detection on the loop driver?	yes	
Does the input signal indicator on amplifier show a signal is present?	Yes	
Judge the signal clarity, e.g. is it shrill, dull or muffled?	Clear	Þ
Judge the level of hum, buzz, or other signal that is not intended to be heard?	Quiet	Þ
Judge the signal quality, are there popping / fizzing sounds alongside normal signals?	Clean	▶
Stop Test Test Points R	esults	کرک Settings

### Live Listening

Use headphones to test signal presence, quality and clarity with live signal.



## Field Strength test with Live Signal

Test level in at least one position with intended audio source.



System Noise test Test in at least one position with system ON and inputs muted.

▶?



Is there appropriate signage to show that a loop system is present? Is it clear where to expect the system to be usable? Is there any routine maintenance / checking of the system? Ves Stop Test Test Points Stop Test Test Points Stop Test Test Points Check for appropriate signage

System: Meeting Room 1 Session: Commissioning - 01/07

Are staff able to set up / operate the system?

Commissioning Test

Venue Accessibility

Yes

# If required, test room overspill Check trained cystom

Check for appropriate signage, trained staff and appropriate system maintenance.

# Test Mode - Commissioning Test results in the Loopworks portal

Once users have created and signed in to their Loopworks account, the App will synchronise any collected data with the Loopworks online portal, making it possible for users to view, analyse and share their results online. Users can also create test and certification reports, including the full commissioning test report shown below.



# Test Mode - Commissioning Test Reporting in the Loopworks portal

Users can also save and print a pdf version of the full commissioning test report, complete with their own company's logo. The commissioning test report is very comprehensive; the illustration shows the page 1 summary that is available. All the individual test data is provided in following pages to support the overall verdicts shown within the summary.





Quick Check Test is designed for environments where quite simple, but perhaps multiple, hearing loop systems are pre-installed and a basic evaluation of the system against IEC 60118-4 is required. A good example of this type of scenario would be in a supermarket, where multiple counter loops are required. This test does not require test signals to be played through the loop system.

# Steps 1-4



Background Noise Test with system OFF.



**Live Listening** Test signal presence, quality and clarity with live signal.

#### Venue Accessibility

Check for appropriate signage, trained staff and appropriate system maintenance.



Test and record live signal in at least one position.

NOTE: Make sure you follow the guidance regarding loop height and setting up test points on **pages 13 & 14.** 



## Test Mode - Quick Check Test Results in the Loopworks portal

Quick Check Test evaluates pre-installed systems against Standard. Users can compile, manage and print their system reports complete with their own company's logo via the online environment.

	Learn -	Connec	:t ~ /	<b>A</b> easure	Design		
	Projects >> Ampetronic Office >> Meeting	Room 3 >> Quick Check				0	
	SESSION SUMMARY			Design	Delet De		Manage
							and prin
	Session date Session name	03/07/2020 Quick Check	Test session	notes			vour
	Session type	Quick Check			A Descent	1.00	you.
	Survey engineer	Chris Dale			C. Statement	3. Color	reports
	SESSION RESULTS Tested to Standard(s): IEC60118-4			dict: Quick Check		-	
	Select tick / cross icon to reveal test resu	ult details.	Janie J				<del>.</del>
	dBL re 4	30mA/m	111	6			—Iest typ
	Test I	Point	Background Noise	Live Signal	Action		
	<u>A M</u>		V	V	remove		
t point data	8.3	100	<b>v</b>	✓	remove		
	<u>c-1</u>	and	~	<b>√</b>	remove		
	<u>D G</u>	omar	1	√	remove		
	Test V	erdict	~	✓			
					Manage Test	Points	Edit or
	Chive Listening	Comments		Answer	Ver	rdict	manage
	Does the input signal indicator on am	plifier show a signal		Nos		1	your tes
	Judge the level if hum, buzz, or other intended to be heard?	signal that is not		Quiet		<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	points
	Judge the quality of the signal, is then sounds alongside normal signals?	e popping or fizzing		Clean		$\checkmark$	
	Judge the signal clarity, e.g. is it shrill,	dull or muttled?		Gear		$\checkmark$	
	Are live signals delivered without trigg on the loop driver?	ering clip detection		Nes		1	
ue					Test Verdict	1	
essibility>	Yenue Accessibility	Comments		Answer	Ve	rdict	
~~~~,	is there appropriate signage to show t	that a loop system is		Ves		1	
d	present?					V	
	is it clear where to expect the system t	to be dSaDNo?		228 Service 2010		V	
	Are staff able to set up / operate the s	ystem?		Wes .		$\checkmark$	
	is there any routine maintenance / che	acking of the system?		Nes		$\checkmark$	
					Test Verdict	✓	
	Test Equipment:	nents performed via Measure Tool Ap	p				
	Comment:						
	-						
	Telephone 01630 610062 (UK) / +44 1636 6100	62 (outside UK)   Email sales (fampetro	inic.co			-	

# **Test Mode - Freestyle Test**

Select Freestyle Test to evaluate the functional performance of a system against IEC 60118-4 by capturing results (not for certification). The Freestyle Test mode can be used to set up amplifiers and do site tests pre-installation, in preparation for commissioning.

# Steps 1-6



sources of magnetic noise within the area. At least 4 test results are required.





Test with a COMBI signal. Adjust output current on amplifier. At least 4 test results are required.





Frequency Response Test with PINK noise in at least one position. Adjust MLC control on amplifier.





NOTE: Ensure you follow the guidance regarding loop height and setting up test points on pages 13 & 14

## Test Mode - Freestyle Test Results in the Loopworks Portal

Freestyle Test evaluates the functional performance of a system against Standards. Users can compile, manage and print their system reports complete with their own company's logo via the online environment.



# **Solution** Test Mode - Site Assessment Test

Select Site Assessment Test to evaluate a site using a simple test loop and capture results to determine the most suitable type of installation and specific amplifier required.

Results from Site Assessment Tests can be analysed and used alongside Loopworks Design to ensure accurate specification of the most cost effective installation for your project. Note that this is the only test type where we are not looking to achieve a pass result, purely measure the loop performance with a known current. Any test loop should closely resemble the intended final installation.

Use alongside an Ampetronic HLS-2D Metal Loss Test Driver for easy and portable site testing. For more information on conducting site tests, see the videos on our YouTube channel.

# Steps 1-4



**1. Test Loop Details** ARMS, length, width, height, gaps and construction.



**2. Field Strength** Test with a COMBI signal.



**3. Frequency Response** Test with PINK noise.



#### **4. Background Noise** Test with system OFF.

Be aware that background noise may change in the final installation if the test is being carried out on a construction site.

## Test Mode - Site Assessment Test Results in the Loopworks Portal

Site Assessment Test evaluates a site using a simple test loop in order to understand the type of system needs to be installed. Users can compile, manage and print their system reports complete with their own company's logo via the online environment.



## 🐼 Test Mode: Editing a Project or System in the Portal



### 1. Create or edit a Project or System

You can create and edit projects and systems in the Loopworks Measure portal as well as in the App. This facility gives users the option to create and edit systems pre site visit, on site and post site visit. Users can also open and review projects in the portal; once sessions are in review, users will lose the option to make any more measurements in the session via the App.

You are able to add or change comments and answers, exclude results or convert them to qualified passes, however you cannot edit the actual measurement level data recorded via the app. To change this you must re-take the measurement on site.

Once all edits have been made press 'Issue & Closed' to put the session into a final read-only state, ready to print a report.

## 2. Managing Test Points

You can manage all of your test points directly via the Loopworks Measure Portal. This is particularly useful if you have defined test points ahead of a site visit and wish to make edits.



### 3. Add or Edit Test Points

Each test point is captured in the Loopworks Measure Portal; by clicking on individual test points, a dialogue box appears that gives users the option to add or edit test point measurements.



### 4. Edit Test Points Data

You can add test point comments and descriptions and edit data for your test points by clicking directly into the test point results. You can also choose to include or exclude a test point from your final results; although by selecting this option, you will lose the option to make any more measurements in the session via the App.



# **Verdicts**

Each meter view shows a clear pass, qualified pass or fail verdict live on screen which updates in real time with the measurements you make. These verdicts are based around the requirements of the IEC 60118-4 performance standard. Colour coding of the meters indicate the different ranges which vary dependent on the test type and signal type that are currently active.

When in a test mode the results saved in each test point are collated to give a verdict for that specific section, and then an overall verdict for the system as a whole. You will need at least 4 test points with results saved against them to create a system verdict.

Knowing how verdicts are measured will give you the best chance of achieving a pass when commissioning your next hearing loop system. It's important to review your results whilst on site and understand the changes you can make to improve system performance before finishing any test.

	1	Connect -		Measu	ire	D
Meeting Hoor	13 >> Commissionin	9				
AMP	ETRONIC		Hearing Commission Certifi	Loop ning Test cate		
-	Installa	ion details			Testing detail	\$
Project: Amp	etronic Office			Test Equipment: Measure	ments performed vs	a Measure Tool App
System: Meet	ing Room 3			Tested by: Chris Dale		Date: 03/07/2020
System Type:	Area			Sension: Commissioning		
Certificate	enerated from data m	anually entered in	to Loopworks Cert	ficule generated from data	manually entered in	nto Loopworks Copyright W
Ampetronic **	Ltd 2014-2020. Certifi Loopworks Co	cate generated tro pyright to Ampetro	om data manually er onic ** Ltd 2014-203	ntered into Loopworks Certi 20. Entire contents copyright	ficate generated tr this Ampetronic 20	om dete menually entered int 10 - 2020
2	Does the sy	Overall S	System Verd	ict s of the standard(s)?	$\checkmark$	PASS
1 (11)	Background Noise	Are levels of in	sterference or no	ise acceptably low?	1	
2	Field Strength	Are acceptable area?	e feld levels achie	wed throughout the	1	
3 😤	Frequency Response	Does the syste response through	im achieve accep ughout the area?	table frequency	4	
		Does the input signal is prese	t signal indicator nt?	on amplifier show a	1	
		Judge the leve intended to be	el if hum, buzz, or e heard?	other signal that is not	1	
4 7.	Live Signal Listening Test	Judge the qua fizzing sounds	lity of the signal, alongside norma	is there popping or al signals?	1	
		Judge <mark>t</mark> he sign	nal clarity, e.g. is i	t shrill, dull or muffled?	1	
		Are live signal detection on t	s delivered witho he loop driver?	ut triggering clip	1	
5 5	Live Signal Final Check	Does the syste with real signa	im achieve accep ils?	table field strength	1	
6 ###	System Noise	Does the syste with the input	im achieve accep s muted?	tably low noise levels	1	
<u> </u>	Overspill	Are the oversp	oill levels acceptal	ble?	1	
		is there appropriate appropriate system is press	priate signage to ent?	show that a loop	1	
: 0	Venue	is it clear when	re to expect the s	ystem to be usable?	1	
	Accessionity	Are staff able to set up / opera		te the system?	1	
		is there any ro system?	utine maintenani	ce / checking of the	1	
Comment:						
Declaration against the 4:2014+ AM	that the system has requirements of IEC D:2017	been tested 50118-	Signed:		Date:	

The following table shows the requirements for each test verdict and how these contribute to an overall commissioning test result.

Commiss	sioning		Individual test verdict	S		Sec	tion verdict	
verdicts	guide	Pass	Qualified pass	Fail	Pass	Qualified pass	Fail	Notes
<mark>때는</mark> Background <sup>대매</sup> noise		-32dB or below	Above -32dB up to -22dB	Above -22dB	All tests pass	Up to 50% of tests qualified pass	Any test fails or more than 50% of tests qualified pass	Test signal: system off At least four tests are required
tField	Area coverage	From -3dB to +3dB	*From -4.5dB to +4.5dB	* Below -4.5dB or above +4.5dB	All tests pass, at least	Up to 50% of tests	Any test fails or more	Test signal: combi or sine
strength	Service point	From -6dB to +6dB	From -7.5dB to +7.5dB	Below -7.5dB or above +7.5dB	ode and +3dB	qualified pass	qualified pass	At least four tests are required
Frequency response		100Hz to 5kHz within ±3dB of 1kHz	100Hz or 5kHz within ±6dB of 1kHz and 125Hz to 4kHz within ±3dB of 1kHz	100Hz or 5kHz more than ±6dB from 1kHz or 125Hz to 4kHz more than ±3dB from 1kHz	All tests pass	Any test qualified pass	Any test fails	Test signal: pink noise At least four tests are required
	Input signal?	Yes	No	N/A				
. 1	Hum/buzz?	Quiet	Noticeable	Very noisy			Anv anewar faile or	Test signal: live signals
Ju listenina	Quality?	Clean	Noticeable	Distorted	All answers as pass	Up to 50% of answers qualified pass	more than 50% of	To achieve an overall verdict of
n	Clarity?	Clear	Noticeable	Unclear		0 5 5 5 5	answers qualified pass	pass, this section must pass
	No clipping?	Yes	Clips, audio OK	Clipping				
t ive field	Area coverage	From -6dB to +3dB	From -9dB to +6dB	Below -9dB or above +6dB		Up to 50% of tests	Any test fails or more	Test signal: live signals
strength	Service point	From -6dB to +3dB	From -9dB to +8dB	Below -9dB or above +8dB	All tests pass	qualified pass	than 50% of tests qualified pass	Only one test is required
<sub>해내</sub> System <sup>해내</sup> noise		-47dB or below, or within 3dB of background noise test	Above -47dB up to -32dB, if more than 3dB above background noise	Above -32dB, if more than 3dB above background noise	All tests pass	Any test qualified pass	Any test fails	Test signal: system on, no signal Only one test is required
Overspill		-32dB or below, or within 3dB of background noise test	Above -32dB up to -22dB, if more than 3dB above background noise	Above -22dB, if more than 3dB above background noise	All tests pass	Any test qualified pass	Any test fails	Test signal: combi or sine No overspill test is required for overall verdict
	Signage?	Yes	N/A	No				
Venue	Where used?	Yes	No	N/A		Up to 50% of answers	Any answer fail or more	Leaving any questions as 'no
accessibility	Trained staff?	Yes	N/A	No	All allsweis as pass	qualified pass	qualified pass	answer win not anect overall verdict
	Maintained?	Yes	No	N/A				

**Overall verdicts:** Pass = all sections are passes, will still pass if overspill and venue accessibility have no verdict. Qualified pass = one or two sections are qualified passes, can still qualified pass if live listening, overspill and venue accessibility have no verdict. Fail = any section is failed or three or more sections are qualified passes. \*Selecting Australian standards, with metal present for the commissioning session, will increase field strength qualified pass window for area coverage systems to -9dB to +6dB. \*Different limits apply to field strength tests for other signals

# Trouble Shooting

### 1. Receiver does not calibrate

You may not have accepted the option to allow Loopworks permission to use the microphone input found in Settings > Privacy > Microphone > Loopworks Measure

### 2. I can't capture meter reading

- Have you signed in? ٠
- Ensure you're using the App in the correct alignment
- Assign a test point/create a test point when signed in. •



- Make sure you are signed in to your Loopworks account ٠
- Ensure that you have selected/defined a project and system prior to starting a test
- Ensure you have defined a Test Point (or Test Points) to save the data against.

### 4. I'm stuck in a Session! How do I get out?

- Press the Stop Test icon •
- If it not selectable, then use the **forward arrow** to move on to a stage when the test can be stopped/paused.

### 5. I can't sign in, what do I need to do?

Make sure you have signed up for a Loopworks account at https://loopworks.ampetronic.com and that you ٠ have received the email confirming that it has been set up. Ensure you have access to a wireless network when signing into Loopworks.

#### 6. The App won't synchronise with my Loopworks account, what do I need to do?

- You need to have access to a wireless network when signing into Loopworks. If the App is taking a long time to synchronise, then you may be in an area with poor Wi-Fi signal. If you are signed in, you can use the App to store data locally and synchronise later
- If the App is taking a long time or failing to synchronise, then you may be using a network with firewall settings that is preventing the connection. If you are signed in, you can use the App to store data locally and synchronise later.

### 7. How do I make the Record Audio button selectable?

You need to have designated a test point and be in Test mode to record audio against.



Alignment!







C

# Important Safety Information

#### **Misuse Disclaimers**

WARNING: Failure to follow these safety instructions could result in fire, electric shock, injury, or damage to iPhone, iPad or other property. Read all the safety information below before using device.

Handle iOS device with care. It is made of metal, glass, and plastic and has sensitive electronic components inside. iPhone or iPad can be damaged if dropped, burned, punctured, or crushed, or if it comes in contact with liquid. Don't use a damaged device, such as one with a cracked screen, as it may cause injury. If you're concerned about scratching, consider using a case or cover.

#### Repairing

Don't open iPhone or iPad and don't attempt to repair device or Receiver yourself. Disassembling device may damage it or may cause injury to you. If device or Receiver is damaged, malfunctions, or comes in contact with liquid, contact Apple or an Apple Authorised Service Provider, or, in the case of damage to the Receiver, Ampetronic.

#### Battery

Don't attempt to replace the device battery yourself—you may damage the battery, which could cause overheating and injury. The lithium-ion battery in device should be replaced only by Apple or an Apple Authorised Service Provider, and must be recycled or disposed of separately from household waste. Don't incinerate the battery. For information about battery recycling and replacement, go to apple.com/batteries/ replacement-and-recycling.

#### Distraction

Using iPhone or iPad in some circumstances may distract you and might cause a dangerous situation (for example, avoid using headphones to record audio when on a busy construction site). Observe rules that prohibit or restrict the use of mobile devices or headphones.

Do not use these services while performing activities that require your full attention. Always comply with posted signs and the laws and regulations in the areas where you are using device and always use common sense.